
        Invitation to Bid 
STATE OF CONNECTICUT 

TEACHERS’ RETIREMENT BOARD 
765 Asylum Street, HARTFORD, CT 06105 
(860) 241‐8402   Fax (860) 525‐6018   www.ct.gov/trb 

Form TRB1 
 
Bid # TRB2009‐01‐REV 
 
Bid Description:  Pharmacy Benefits Manager 
 
Intent to Bid Letter Due:  July 3, 2008     Bid Due Date:  July 17, 2008 
 

 

1.Ethics summary & forms: 
http://www.ct.gov/ethics/lib/ethics/guides/contractors_guide_final08.pdf 

a. Gift Certification  Form 1: 
http://www.ct.gov/opm/lib/opm/finance/psa/opm_ethicsform1_103107.pdf 

b. Annual Contract Certification Form 5: 
http://www.ct.gov/opm/lib/opm/finance/psa/opm_ethicsform5_103107.pdf 

c. Consulting Agreement Affidavit  Form 6: 
http://www.ct.gov/opm/lib/opm/finance/psa/opm_ethicsform6_103107.pdf 

 
2. Executive Orders: 
Executive Order No. Three (3); No. Seven C (7C); No. Sixteen (16); No. Seventeen (17); No. Fourteen (14): 
http://www.das.state.ct.us/purchase/Executive_Orders_new.pdf 

No. Fourteen (14) Compliance policy:  http://www.das.state.ct.us/Purchase/Epp/EPP_Policy_010408.pdf    
 
3.State Contractor Contribution Ban: 
Form SEEC 10: http://www.ct.gov/seec/lib/seec/seec_form_10_notice_to_state_contractors.pdf 

Form SEEC 11:  
http://www.ct.gov/seec/lib/seec/attachment_c‐
seec_form_11_notice_to_executive_branch_state_contractors_3.20.07.pdf 

 
4. Bidder information form (will be used if you are selected) 
http://www.das.state.ct.us/Purchase/Info/Vendor_Authorization_and_Guidance_081106.pdf 
http://www.ct.gov/chro/lib/chro/pdf/notificationtobidders.pdf 

 
5. TRB HIPAA Business Associate Agreement: 
http://www.ct.gov/trb/lib/trb/formsandpubs/TRBBusinessAssoc_Committee.pdf   
Evaluation Criteria:  The State of Connecticut has a vested interest in finding the best services/products for the lowest 
cost. 
Signing this form will acknowledge your receipt of the above State of Connecticut contracting requirements. 
This must be Signed & Returned with your bid by July 17, 2008. 
 
______________________________________________                         ________________________________________ 
  Authorized Signature of Bidder                                                                                     Company Name                                                Date

http://www.ct.gov/trb
http://www.ct.gov/ethics/lib/ethics/guides/contractors_guide_final08.pdf
http://www.ct.gov/opm/lib/opm/finance/psa/opm_ethicsform1_103107.pdf
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I. Intention to Bid 
 
The State of Connecticut Teachers’ Retirement Board (the “TRB”) is interested in 

receiving proposals for the provision of pharmacy benefit services.  Our preference is to 

receive a letter of intent to bid from all interested bidders by 3:30 p.m. on July 3rd, 2008.  

The intent to bid letter does not bind potential bidders to submit a bid.  As part of this 

process, questions that are received by TRB from potential bidders are posted on the 

web-site as an addendum to this RFP so that all potential bidders have equal access to 

the same information.  Letters of intent to bid should be submitted to: 

Ms. Darlene Perez, Administrator 
Connecticut State Teachers’ Retirement Board 

765 Asylum Avenue 
Hartford, CT  06105 

darlene.perez@po.state.ct.us 

 

Failure to provide a letter of intent to bid does not disqualify the bidder from submitting a 

bid by the bid due date (see next page.)   
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II. Proposed Time Table 
 
RFP published   June 5, 2008 

Intention to Bid Letter Due  July 3, 2008 

Bids Due    July 17, 2008 

Finalist Presentation  July 30, 2008 

Selection of Vendor   August 1, 2008 

Contract Due to TRB  September 1, 2008 

Implementation   January 1, 2009 

 

III. Delivery of Bids 

Bidders must provide six copies of bids, along with all documents and exhibits.  Bids 

and accompanying documents and exhibits must be delivered no later than 3:30 p.m. 

on July 17, 2008 addressed to Darlene Perez, 765 Asylum Avenue, Hartford, CT 06105, 

or darlene.perez@po.state.ct.us.  All bids will be time stamped upon receipt.  Bids 

received after 3:30 p.m. on July 17, 2008, will be disqualified from this process and will 

not be opened. 

 

IV. Publication of RFP 

Consistent with State of Connecticut requirements, this RFP is being listed on the 

state’s procurement/contractor portal on the State Department of Administrative 

Services website, www.das.state.ct.us, and advertised in the press. 
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V. Introduction 

The TRB is an agency of the State of Connecticut.  Its’ primary responsibility is to 

provide retirement and medical benefits to retired teachers of the State of Connecticut.  

The TRB is a body that is composed of 12 members, five of whom are elected by the 

teachers, and five of which are appointed public members.  The remaining two 

members are ex-officio to the TRB:  the Commissioner of Education and the 

Commissioner of the Department of Social Services. 

 

Corporate Benefit Consultants, LLC (CBC) is an employee benefits consulting firm 

located in Durham, CT.  CBC is hired as a consultant to the TRB and may only receive 

compensation in the form of fees from the State.  No individual other than an employee 

of the Pharmacy Benefit Manager (PBM) is to receive any compensation, brokerage 

fee, referral fee or any other type of compensation associated with the placement of this 

contract. 

 

As noted above, the TRB is interested in receiving proposals for the provision of 

prescription drug administration and pharmacy benefit services. The TRB has been 

contracting directly with a PBM for eight years and is not interested in receiving 

intermediated bids. The TRB will accept only bids provided by a PBM and its 

employees. The reasons for the Request for Proposals (RFP) are that the current 

contract with the vendor, Medco Health of Franklin Lakes, New Jersey, expires on 

December 31, 2008, and the State of Connecticut requires that contracts are bid 
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frequently (approximately every three years) to ensure the best product and service is 

made available at the most competitive price.   

 

The current prescription drug vendor/PBM, the Systemed unit of Medco Health, offers 

plan sponsors the choice of two networks, one which is all-encompassing and one that 

is narrower but offers a higher level of discounts.  The total number of pharmacies in the 

small Medco network is approximately 62,500.  That size network is adequate for the 

TRB’s existing needs. 

 

The TRB is interested in receiving proposals that provide for a three-year contract 

based upon satisfactory performance and the needs of the State of Connecticut.  Thus, 

the contractual period is January 1, 2009 through December 31, 2011.  

 

The plan sponsor is the Connecticut State Teachers Retirement Board.  The TRB’s 

administrator is Ms. Darlene Perez.  All correspondence associated with this RFP 

should be addressed to her at 765 Asylum Avenue, Hartford, CT 06105 or 

darlene.perez@po.state.ct.us. 

 
 
VI. Legal form of the bids 
 
As an agency of the State of Connecticut, the TRB and all potential vendors are subject 

to the purchasing rules of the State of Connecticut.  A copy of the rules is contained in 

Appendix A.  As a state governmental plan, the plan is exempt from the rules of 

ERISA.  The plan is fully self-funded and hence is not subject to state insurance law.  
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The statue controlling the operation of the plan is Connecticut General Statutes Section 

10-183b, et. seq. 

 

 

VII. Description of the Plan 

A. Current Plan 

Appendix B contains a summary plan description for the current prescription drug plan.  

In addition, Appendix B contains separate sheets describing the prescription drug 

coverages, managed drugs, and exclusions for the retail and mail order plans, 

respectively.  The agreement between the incumbent vendor and the TRB is located in 

Appendix G.  The agreement is redacted:  the current costs are not identified to 

prevent the possibility of any bidder’s gaining a competitive advantage. 

 

B. Sources of Funds 

There are three primary sources of revenue to support the program.  The largest source 

of funds is a payroll contribution required of active teachers. Teachers pay 1.25% of 

their salary to support the program.  The second source is the State of Connecticut, 

which contributes approximately one-third of the cost of the program.  The final source 

of funds is retired teachers, who pay approximately one-third of the cost of the plan to 

participate, in addition to their co-pays.  
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C. Plan Membership and Eligibility 

Retired teachers fall into two broad classes with regards to health insurance eligibility.  

Many teachers in the state are not eligible for Medicare.  Those teachers may remain in 

the plan of the last Connecticut Board of Education for which they worked.  They 

receive a stipend from the TRB to assist them in paying the costs of participation.  This 

group is not part of the services covered within the scope of this bid.  Teachers who are 

participating in Medicare have the option of participating in the State TRB plan.  Often, 

teachers who retire at an age below 65 participate in the plan of the last employing 

Board of Education and switch to the TRB plan at age 65.  Both the retired teacher and 

the spouse are eligible for the plan in their own right.  So the spouse may decide to 

participate in the TRB plan while the former teacher does not.  It is those teachers who 

are participating in Medicare and the State TRB plan that are covered under the scope 

of this bid and subsequent contract.   

 

D. Current Enrollment, Gross Spend and Utilization 

Currently there are three primary options that a participant in the TRB program may 

select.  They may select a base plan consisting of the medical and prescription drug 

program, and they may add the dental rider and/or the vision and hearing rider.  Only 

the prescription drug program is covered under the scope of this RFP and subsequent 

contract. 
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The approximate enrollments in these three options as of April 2008 are presented in 

Table 1. 

Table 1 
Participation by Plan Type 

April 2008 
Plan Members and Dependents 

(Retirees and Beneficiaries) 
Medical and Rx Only 6031 
Medical, Rx and Dental 0 
Medical, Rx, and Vision and Hearing 185 
Medical, Rx, Dental, Vision and 
Hearing 

7658 

Total 13,874 
 
 
Appendix C lists the zip codes of current members in EXCEL format.  For access to the 

list for purposes of responding to the Bidder Questionnaire (below), bidders may 

request an electronic copy of the list from Darlene Perez, Administrator at 765 Asylum 

Avenue, Hartford, CT 06105 or darlene.perez@po.state.ct.us. 

 

The enrollment in the plan has been edging upward during the course of the past fiscal 

year. The number of Connecticut teachers expected to retire during the next few years 

is substantial.  Accordingly, enrollment in the plan is expected to rise significantly in the 

coming years. 

 

Table 2 depicts the monthly enrollment during July 2007 through March 2008, based 

upon data provided by Medco Health, along with a summary of the monthly costs 

associated with the current plan.  The monthly amounts represent the total spend (i.e., 

retail plus mail order).

 10

mailto:darlene.perez@po.state.ct.us


 

Table 2 
Monthly Gross Rx Spend 

July 2007 through March 2008 
 

Month Total Spend Members 
July  $2,290,793 12,876 
August $2,352,067 12,935 
September $2,276,144 13,009 
October $2,562,898 13,220 
November $2,632,166 13,271 
December $2,897,481 13,326 
January  $1,030,124 13,420 
February $1,585,696 13,449 
March $2,051,163 13,544 
   
   
   
Monthly Average for the Year $2,186,504 13,228 
 
 
 
Appendix D contains a detailed description of the current plan’s experience for the 

period January 1, 2007  – December 31, 2007.  The first tab presents the costs 

associated with various utilizations by members and details the claim type (e.g., brand, 

formulary, non-formulary) for the same time period.  It also contains an overview of the 

costs, prescriptions, and other statistics by broken down by therapeutic class.  The 

second tab lists the top 50 drugs utilized by participants by therapeutic class and brand 

name and details the costs associated with the top 50 drugs. 
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E. Participant and Plan Cost Sharing 
 
The statutory basis of the benefit programs provides that individuals be provided a plan 

at 33% of the cost of the base plan (medical and prescription drug), 100% of the cost of 

the dental plan, and 100% of the cost of the vision and hearing plan.   

 

Table 3 reflects the proportion of the costs per month borne by each of the parties.  The 

costs of the prescription drug and medical plans are expected to increase annually as 

with trends in the industry. 

 
Table 3 

Selected Monthly Costs for the STRB and Participants by Plan Type 
 

Plan STRB Cost 
January 2008 

Member Cost 
January 2008 

Medical and Rx $270 $90 
Medical, Rx and 
Dental 

$312 $132 

Medical, Rx, Dental, 
Vision and Hearing 

$317 $137 

 
 
Additional detailed information regarding the specific prescription drug costs associated with 

the current plan can be found in the tables contained in Appendix D.   

 

TRB must be provided a satisfactory, annual SAS Type 2 audit by the selected vendor. 
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VIII. Bidder Questionnaire/Scope of Services/Pricing 
 
The questionnaire must be completed in a full in order to be considered a conforming 

bid.  Questions can be forwarded in writing to: 

 
Ms. Darlene Perez, Administrator 

Connecticut State Teachers’ Retirement Board 
765 Asylum Avenue. 
Hartford, CT  06105 

darlene.perez@po.state.ct.us 
. 

 

 

A. Firm Description 
1. Name and business address of firm submitting proposal. 

2. Brief description of the firm: history, experience, ownership, what 

distinguishes the firm other PBM’s, what special services the firm offers to 

clients. 

3. Name and address of the firm’s local representative. 

4. Please include a curriculum vitae for the local representative. 

5. Name and work experience/background of the account manager (if different 

from the local representative). 

6. Please provide a list of other accounts that the account manager handles 

including location, size of firms and types of services provided. 

7. Is there anyone involved in the firm’s proposal process who is not a full-time 

employee of the firm?  If so how are they compensated? 

8. Location(s) of administrative office(s) proposed to handle TRB claims. 

9. Total number of lives for which the firm serves as the PBM’s (national and 

Connecticut). 

10. Total number of organizations for which the firm serves as the PBM’S 

(national and Connecticut). 

11. A list of Connecticut teacher accounts serviced by the firm. 
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12. Names, addresses and telephone numbers of three references for 

organizations in which the firm serves as the PBM.  Such references should 

be Connecticut-based employers with over 1,000 lives. 

13. Please provide a list of any major (i.e., over $1,000,000 in total damages in 

question) past or pending litigation against the firm, including the result of 

any past litigation (e.g., civil penalties, reimbursement to customers). 

14. Please provide a list of any state or federal consent decrees under which 

the firm operates. 

15. Please provide a list of accounts and the names, addresses and phone 

numbers of references that the firm has taken over recently from the 

incumbent vendor. 

16. Please provide the most recent Moody’s and S & P rating information for the 

firm. 

17. Please provide a copy of the firm’s last annual statement. 

 

 
B. Managed Benefits 
The benefits provided for above are to be actively managed in a mechanism that is 

consistent with appropriate medical practices.  Included is prior, concurrent and ex-post 

review of services.  The formulary will have to conform with any applicable MMA 

requirements.  A prior approval mechanism would be an acceptable option for non-

formulary drugs and therapeutic classes that are particularly problematic, but that 

approval mechanism may not apply to drugs that are routinely prescribed.  See 

Appendix E for the current prior approval requirements. 

 

1. What pre-approval mechanisms does the firm operate? 

2. How does the pre-approval mechanism work? 

3. How does the firm identify specific drugs and or drug usage for pre-

approval? 
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4. What recommendations for a prior approval mechanism does the firm have 

other than those provided in Appendix E.  Please include the rationales and 

savings estimates associated with the firm’s recommendations 

5. How is usage flagged for inappropriate drug use (e.g., drug abuse, drug 

interaction, and inappropriate prescription)? 

6. What standards are used to determine the medical necessity of sole 

source/formulary drugs? 

7. What post point of sale control mechanisms does the firm offer? 

8. What is the firm’s approach to Utilization Management? 

9. What disease and health management programs are offered as part of this 

proposal? 

 

C. Claim Processing and Payment 
1. Please provide an overview of the claims processing process from the time 

the request for service is obtained at the participating pharmacy until the 

process is complete.  Include the systems that are used and how the 

managed care and reporting systems are accessed. 

2. How long is the average financial payment lag time? 

3. What pharmacy payment and enrollment systems are used?  Is one system 

used nationally or are there multiple systems accessed by location? 

4. What services are provided directly by the organization and for what 

services are subcontractors used?  If subcontractors are used, please 

provide names and addresses for each subcontractor, along with the nature 

of services provided by each subcontractor. 

5. What is the accuracy of claim payments by dollar amounts and by number 

of transactions? 

6. How is eligibility incorporated into the claim payment process? 

7. How is coordination of the benefits tracked and administered? 

8. What is the average telephone wait time for members who have questions 

regarding the claim process? 

9. Please confirm that your organization has a SAS Type 2 annual audit. 
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D. Network 

1. Please provide a zip code match report based upon the current group of 

beneficiaries (refer to Appendix C).  This report should use a one-provider-

in-5 miles and a one-provider-in-7 miles standard.  Please run the report 

and exceptions both in and outside of Connecticut. 

2. Please provide a list of chains (i.e., more than 5 locations) with which you 

do business in CT. 

3. Please provide information on the alternative networks that the firm 

provides. 

4. If you operate internationally, please describe the arrangements that are 

provided outside the United States. 

5. Does the firm offer an integrated program (i.e., one system, one member 

service number, etc.)? 

6. How are pharmacies evaluated for inclusion in the network? 

7. How does the firm coordinate its pharmacy networks? 

8. Please describe the firm’s retail audit program. 

 

E. Mail service 

1. What mail service locations will service our membership? 

2. What is the capacity of the firm’s mail service facilities? 

3. What is the current capacity utilization of the firm’s mail service facilities? 

4. Can the firm offer the design proposed for mail order? 

5. What accommodations can the firm make, for the failures in process, to 

guarantee members access to a continuous supply of prescriptions? 

6. What is the firm’s average mail order prescription turnaround time? 

7. What incentives do members have to fill their prescriptions through home 

delivery? 
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F. Member Services and Communications 
1. Please provide examples of member education and communication 

materials the firm provides (e.g., brochures, plan summaries, ID cards, 

wellness). 

2. Please describe the telephonic customer service communication system(s) 

available to members, including whether there is a toll-free number to call to 

reach a customer service representative or pharmacist, and the hours such 

representatives and pharmacists are available. 

3. Please describe the electronic and internet information, processing and 

communication systems available to members. 

4. Please describe the training the firm provides to its customer service 

representatives and how the firm ensures that they provide accurate 

information to members. 

5. What special programs does the firm have for dealing with the elderly? 

6. What special programs does the firm have available for the blind? 

7. What mechanisms does the firm have for dealing with hearing impaired or 

deaf individuals?  Is there TTY access? 

 
G. Formulary / Generic Drugs 

1. The current formulary arrangement is listed on Appendix F.  Compared to 

the firm’s formulary, how much disruption is expected? 

2. Is the firm’s formulary more efficacious than the incumbent vendor’s?  If so how? 

3. Please identify which therapeutic classes of formulary drugs used by the 

current vendor that the firm more efficaciously handles.  Be specific. 

4. Please describe the operation of the firm’s MAC system. 

5. What percentage of generic drugs are MAC’D? 

6. What mechanisms does the firm utilize to provide incentives for formulary 

drug use? 

7. What incentives does the firm provide for generic drug use? 

8. How do members have access to information about formulary drugs? 
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9. Does the firm have an appeal process as required under the Medicare 

Modernization Act? 

 

H. Reporting 
1. Please provide an example of the firm’s standard reporting package. This 

should include the monthly utilization and financial reports, the quarterly 

reporting mechanism and the annual review.  If the reporting is not a 

standard part of the bid provided, please provide the cost basis of the 

service. 

2. Please describe how the firm’s reporting mechanism deals with deductible 

accumulations, large case issues, claim lag reports, frequent drug codes, 

and problem utilization areas. 

3. Can the Client generate reports? If so, is the reporting capability available 

via the Internet? 

4. Please provide the costs (if any separate costs) of such reports. 

5. Please provide a listing of additional reports that the firm is able to provide, 

including the costs, if any, associated with such reports. 

6. Are explanations of benefits provided to members? If so provide an 

example. 

7. What individual member reports do you provide? 

8. How are deductible credits reported to members? 

9. How are per unit costs of drugs reported to members? 

10. Is there and mechanism for members to acquire current balances? 

11. How are lifetime maximums reported? 

 

I. Client Account Services 
1. How will the firm handle and manage the transition process?  Please 

provide a description of the transition process the firm would utilize, along 

with an implementation timeline. 

2. How will the firm provide support to the Client (i.e., the TRB) to manage 

eligibility and other administrative tasks? 

 18



3. Can the Client update in real time via the Internet? 

4. How will the firm assist the Client in monitoring plan performance? 

 

J. Federal Compliance 
In order to facilitate compliance with Medicare Part D and the submission of 

accurate information so that the TRB will receive the subsidy, the vendor will be 

required to provide the following services, which must be included in the fees 

identified with the response to the RFP. 

1. Please indicate whether the firm will be unable to provide any of the 

services listed below. 

a. Claims and other information required to be submitted on an ongoing 

basis to obtain the Medicare Part D subsidy; 

b. Eligibility record layout with new fields needed on an ongoing basis for 

Part D subsidy eligibility verification with CMS, along with eligibility 

interface between TRB and CMS; 

c. Management of feedback file from CMS (based on eligibility check); 

d.  Movement of ineligible members to new group, as required; 

e. Control report provided to client containing ineligible members and 

reason codes per CMS; 

f. Tracking of eligible claims for eligible members to enable subsidy billing; 

g. Subsidy billing package with the summary and detail claims-related 

information required by CMS; 

h. Calculation of allowable and gross costs and associated subsidy 

amount; 

i. Rebate “true up” analysis to adjust billing according to actual rebates; 

j. Storage of claims, utilization management, and eligibility data for a 10-

year period as required by CMS and False Claims Act. 
 

2. What are the company’s capabilities for HIPAA? 
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K. Commissions 
There are no commissions to be paid under this arrangement to any intermediary.  

Failure to comply with this provision will disqualify any potential bidder. 

 

 

L. Rebates  
Annual rebate levels under the current arrangement totaled approximately $2 million for 

2007, and about $516,599 for the first quarter of 2008 with guarantees per retail and per 

mail script.  It is expected that both formulary and mail usage will increase significantly.  

1. What is the expected level of rebates given the firm’s rebating 

arrangements? 

2. How are formulary rebates tracked and paid? 

3. Does the firm guarantee pass-through acquisition price for mail order and 

complete pass-through of all manufacturer revenue? 

 
M. Pricing 

The pricing section will be limited to self-insured bids.  All sections must be 

completed in full to be considered a conforming bid. 

 
1. Ingredient Costs and Dispensing Fee 

a. Please provide guaranteed costs (do not include managed care/DUR 

savings here) for the following acquisitions of drugs: 

 

Name brand retail costs = AWP – Brand Name Discount plus Per 

Unit dispensing fee minus rebate. 

 

b. Please provide similar figures for mail order name brand, formulary, 

non-formulary and generic mail and retail costs. 

  

c. For MAC, please provide percentage MAC’d (use dollars as base) 

and MAC Discount, as well as dispensing fee. 
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d. Please describe how any non-standard (e.g., biotech, specialty) 

drugs are to be priced. 

 

2. Base Administrative Fee 
Service to include package of requested services: Maintenance of in force, 

reporting package, issuance of cards, retrospective claim analysis, coordination 

of benefits, postage, issuance of cards, auditing pharmacies, managed care 

services, processing claim forms, maintenance of member balances, access to 

individual claim records and access of member to balances. 

 

Please provide the following costs (if applicable): 

 

a. Per member per month or per script (please specify) = $X.XX 
b. Additional services: 

• Extra Cards $.XX. 

• Claim detail $.XX per page. 

• Mailing to employees $.XX per unit per member. 

• Non-network fees per claim $X.XX. 
c. Other additional services that are quoted separately (please explain 

with specificity). 

d. Performance Guarantees.  Please describe the amounts the firm is 

willing to put up for performance guarantees in the following areas: 

• Generic substitution. 

• Call response time. 

• System response time. 

• DUR effectiveness. 

• Financial Accuracy. 

• Implementation satisfaction. 
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3. Transparency 
In an effort to ensure “transparency”—i.e., that all costs and revenues associated 

with the administration of the TRB’s prescription drug plan are accurately and 

fully disclosed—the selected vendor will be required to provide pricing 

information such as the actual acquisition cost of brand and generic drugs at 

retail or delivered via mail order. 

a. Please indicate whether the firm is prepared to comply with this 

requirement. 

b. In addition, please indicted whether compliance with this requirement 

to increase administrative costs and, if so, by how much. 

 

IX. Scoring Criteria 

The TRB will utilize the following criteria to assess the bids that are submitted: 
 

A. Experience of the Vendor (10 Points) 
B. Experience/Background of the Individual Account/Service Manager (10 

Points) 
C. Network of Pharmacies, Mail Order Services (15 Points) 
D. Formulary/MAC System (10 Points) 
E. Guarantees (Claims Processing/Accuracy/Reports) (10 Points) 
F. Pricing:  Fees/Rebates (40 Points) 
G. Financial Strength (5 points) 
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APPENDIX A 
 

Instructions to Bidder 
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Ethics Affidavits & Certifications for State Contracts 
 

http://www.ct.gov/trb/lib/trb/formsandpubs/ethicsforms_103107.pdf 
 
 
Sample Contract 
 
Any potential bidder should be prepared to honor the terms and conditions contained in 
the “sample contract” found below. 
 
The terms and conditions contained in the “sample contract” are non-negotiable. 
The bidder who is awarded this contract will be expected to submit this contract, without 
revisions, to formalize the agreement with the State of Connecticut and the bidder who 
is awarded the contract. 
 

http://www.ct.gov/trb/lib/trb/formsandpubs/Form_Contract_AGENCY.pdf 
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APPENDIX B 
 

Current Plan 
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PAID PLAN HJ3:    STATE OF CONNECTICUT 
COVERED DRUGS: 
The following are covered benefits unless listed as an exclusion below: 
♦ Federal Legend Drugs 
♦ State Restricted Drugs 
♦ Compounded Medications of which at least one ingredient is a legend drug 
♦ Insulin 
♦ Insulin Needles and Syringes 
♦ OTC diabetic supplies 
♦ Legend Vitamins 
 
QUANTITY PER COPAY: 
♦ Drugs to treat Impotency for males only age 18 and over, limited to a 34 day supply or 6 units whichever is less 

per claim 
 
MANAGED PRIOR AUTHORIZATION: 
♦ Gleevec 
♦ Alzheimer’s Therapy (i.e. Aricept, Cognex, Exelon) 
♦ IVRU – Aricept  
♦ Erythroid stimulants 
♦ Growth Hormones 
♦ Interferons (i.e. Alpha, Beta and Gamma) 
♦ Accutane 
♦ IVRU – Retin-A/Avita 
♦ Misc. Dermatologicals (i.e. Regranex, Panretin Gel) 
♦ Antiobesity medications 
♦ Xolair 
♦ Raptiva 
 
EXCLUSIONS: 
The following are excluded from coverage unless specifically listed as a benefit under "Covered Drugs". 
♦ Non-Federal Legend Drugs 
♦ Contraceptive jellies, creams, foams, or devices, implants or injections 
♦ Oral Contraceptives 
♦ Fertility Drugs 
♦ Smoking Deterrents 
♦ Mifeprex 
♦ Therapeutic devices or appliances 
♦ Drugs whose sole purpose is to promote or stimulate hair growth (i.e. Rogaine, Propecia) or for cosmetic 

purposes only (i.e. Renova, Vaniqa) 
♦ Immunization agents, vaccines, biologicals, blood or blood plasma products 
♦ Drugs labeled "Caution-limited by Federal Law to investigational use", or experimental drugs, even though a 

charge is made to the individual. 
♦ Medication for which the cost is recoverable under any Workers' Compensation or Occupational Disease Law 

or any State or Governmental Agency, or medication furnished by any other Drug or Medical Service for which 
no charge is made to the member. 

♦ Medication which is to be taken by or administered to an individual, in whole or in part, while he or she is a 
patient in a licensed hospital, rest home, sanitarium, extended care facility, skilled nursing facility, convalescent 
hospital, nursing home or similar institution which operates on its premises or allows to be operated on its 
premises, a facility for dispensing pharmaceuticals. 

♦ Any prescription refilled in excess of the number of refills specified by the physician, or any refill dispensed 
after one year from the physician's original order. 

♦ Charges for the administration or injection of any drug. 
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DISPENSING LIMITS: 
♦ The amount of drug (regardless of dosage form) which is to be dispensed per prescription or refill will be in 

quantities prescribed up to a 34 day supply or 100 units, whichever is greater. 
 
Paid Plan HJ3/jz 
3/15/04 
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APPENDIX C 
 

Zip Code Listing 
 

 
Please click the link below for the Zip Code Listing 

 
http://www.ct.gov/trb/lib/trb/formsandpubs/hlthzips060408.pdf 
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APPENDIX D, APPENDIX E, and APPENDIX F 
 

 
 

Please click the link below 
 

http://www.ct.gov/trb/lib/trb/formsandpubs/TRBAPPENDICESD-F.pdf 
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 30

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX G 
 

Integrated Drug Program Agreement 
 

 
Please click the link below 

 
http://www.ct.gov/trb/lib/trb/formsandpubs/PBSAppendixG.pdf 

 
 

http://www.ct.gov/trb/lib/trb/formsandpubs/PBSAppendixG.pdf
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